World War Ii SUmmary

P’'ve been asked to summarize my experiences in World War b se ”_;al _
people in the past and I've always put it off. Since 1 do f
anything that I can brag about I've always thought that it
But when | reflect on the past, | have to admit that l’ve h _
fun and some things have left an impact. o

INTRODUCTION

I think that I need to begin at the beginning to make any sense'«'o}u't ofthlsat
. all. , RS

out well and Mom said that his barns were cleaner than mes :
was a big, good-looking Norwegian and was naturally pop arwith

everybody.

- Only a few years into his ranch/farm endeavor, he became disillusioned
‘with it all due to prairie firés, hail-out and drought We moved to the little
town, Wetonka, where my grandparents ran the post office and my
grandfather also taught seventh grade. (My grandfather also enjoyed a
reputation as an Irish wit and poet; he became Ppoet laureate of South
Dakota). Dad continued his farming activities by doing contract plowing,
seeding, and harvesting since he had the equlpment left over from his own 7
' operatlon And | spent a Iot of time with himevenas a very young boy on
threshing and planting actlwtles

Before she was married my mother (then Inez Friel) had gamed her
teachlng certificate at Aberdeen Normal and taught country schoo| After



marriage to Dad, she taught when ever she was tree ot bredna
new bables This went on until the late 20’s when d

- construction. He was naturally good wath equupment end 'waS;generally
 employed until the depression intensified. i
GROWING up

I had spent the first five grades and part of 1
. | was a fairly good student in grade sch"
spelllng, Enghsh grammar and history
in school and several in County competiti
through elghth grades were spent at the { pearfi h No
which was part of Spearhsh Normal College ‘

Because of the debilitating depression economy.
We were Catholic and had become a family of nine

now, Dad was getting work on WPA and other-w
available. And of course, everybody worked
old enough. Sisters baby-sat; my youngest brother '
salesman selling magazines and papers. Summer ]og_ }frkept us fully

employed.

| started Speatrfish High School in 1933 but after my treshman year I'joined
the Civilian Conservation Corps in 1934. | was not yet tiﬂeen buti was
reasonably big and strong. | spent the next fifteen months in the Camp
Lodge CCC canp (Civlilian Conversation Camp) near CUster SD. There
were about 30 of us that joined up that summer so I had a lot of triends and
enjoyed their companionship. The work was good experience, and my
money coming home was most helpful. Initially we lived in tents, but that
summer barracks and administrative buildings were built some of which
still exist and provide a summer play house for the University of SD. In the
next fifteen months we built from scratch a dam over Grace Coolidge Creek




that formed a beautiful lake that is now a popula s
camping area.. o
I came back to high -school in 1935 and g‘rad ate
a pleasant time for me. | made a lot of. ine
and had a great girl friend, Virginia Brak|
after college if | was able to matriculat"
captaln of the team in 1937 and t at

wasn’t smart enough to take hlm up onthe mv

it.
Mr. Ed Coleman who taught General Science anc

was discharged from hlS class for some , ollj
hot dog for the beneﬂt oi the girls In.; ny:jul

have you. But your are going to have to iormally sta e that your behavior
would be of such a nature as to bring credit to yourself.” Sol signed such
a document and became one of Ed’s star students (All A’s. ) On the night
of graduation, after receiving my diploma and comlng ofi the podium Ed
" met me in the aisle and returned the little “promissory note” that 1 had
- given him two years before. We stayed friends until his death.

During my last two years of high school and the first two years of college |
had attended the summer Civilian Military Training Camp in Bismarck, ND.
This was a one-month affair, and we were largely motivated because of the
mileage compensation we got for coming to camp. For us, in the Black
Hills, we netted about 75 bucks. That provided a lot of hay in those days




and by carefully marshallmg our expenses we made o
transportation to Bismarck and back was part;g
(one year we did ride up in a Ford coupe')‘f y |
hopping. (Incidentally, the CMTC training pro sidéc
becoming reserve Army offlcers After fo
finishing a correspondence course assu
could become a commissroned reserve se _
this program.) -

After graduatlng high school, and becaus*u_
assumed that | would just go to work to help he fami




practlce-taught first
literature for another

Training Program. The flying portion
. lce who also ran the airport and who f

employed a young (nineteen) flight instructor by the naf .
She was good looking and sharp as hell' : (l have a dellghtful book: written' |
by a Nebraska schoolteacher who years later did her thesis projecton |
Evelyn.) Everybody loved Evelyn includmg me, but there were so many
suitors ahead of mel didn’t even try. | received my private pilot’s lioense
through Evelyn s instruction and was hooked on flymg Without a nickel to

my name and a hankering for flying, my buddy s Dad, Cap Young, said
“heck, I'll get you guys in the Air Corps.” He went down to the post ofﬂce,
got two application blanks for the Army Air Corps and both his son L.H.
Young and | were accepted into the COrps (We both stayed in and retired
from the USAF. How is that for coming through? Thanks, Cap.)

I got the tirs,t call from the Artny Air Corps in early 1941, 1 was told to report
to Lowry Field in Denver for a “64” flight physical. 1 hitch hiked a local



| freight delivery truck that made regular tnps between De

Hills. 1 still remember the driver’s name: Frosty Schuster"_
nervous about passing the eye test, | spent the next 2 da
in almost total darkness fearful that strong s '
chance to pass the physlcal This was a ](rve le sol
because of the experlence that | had had-th
to Bismarck, ND in the rumble seat of a
| camp. Because of the intense exposu
| failed to pass the: 20/20 eye test (l sho
the eye test for the Civilian Pilot training__p
I had a chance to memorize the eye chart. |
from the summer blitz.)

Back to Denver. | passed the physical ok; and I was nef; ‘ report

- to Fort Snelling, MN in April 1941,

Five of us, Hank Jennings, Merle Bryan, Sy Burke, and St ot
inducted into the Army Air Corps on 28 April and were -
Primary School in Pine Biuf, AR. We flew PT-19s and graduated prifary in
‘June of *41. We were ordered to Randolph Fid. TX. =~ S
On the way, we made a magnmcent visit to New Orleans. Merle and ljoined .
classmates Jim Angel and WW (name forgotten) in a Buick convertible. Jim
owned the convertible. Both Jim and WW were lowa boys a llttle older with '
~ alot more worldly experience than- Merle and 1 had. Ww wasvery
impressive and sophisticated; he had had graduated lowa U. and had gone

to New York to fame and fortune. The only fame we got from Ww was
getting him out of jail in New Orleans for drunkenness and misbehavior in
one of the Bourbon street bars. Jim had also graduated lowa U, and was
working for some firm when he joined the Corps. He had graduated from
the ROTC program so he became a cadet "big dog" right away. ‘




Merle, from Stickney, SD, and | roomed together at Pine |
Fid. We were in “G” company and we flew BT-t 4s. The most rr
experience that | had until | got to combat was ' e ni
my initial night mission said, “you got it” and t
graduating Randolph, Merie wentto Keiiy
to Foster Fid, TX to train for ﬂghters
buddies and spent every off-post opp
bars in Pine Bluff and San Antonio l;
graduation from tlying sch
he got out of the Service atter the war ay d becan
banking mdustry . |

- Foster was a great traimng experience- Fi
class to contend with We were the |

rules). They wanted us to be ! i h e Wea v_o' had the benefit ot one
of the Royal Air Forces premier ace S that d tin_ éhed his tour during the
Battle of Britain. Boy, did he inject the iughter pilot spmt' The first time we
saw him fly was when he came over the hangars upsrde down.

We graduated from Foster on 12 December 1941, five days atter Pearl
Harbor! This was a Chaotic time. The nation didn’t have much of anything
in real hghting equipment. And the surprise that was inillcted by the Pearl]
Harbor attack just couldn’t be imagined.

in December, our entire class was assigned to the 56™ Pursuit Group then
at Charieston, SC camped intents. _



it was rainy and cold and for an old South Dakota boy }w
below winters with less discomfort this was a lousy few W
provided us with showers and Charlestomtes treated us
to all their holiday events. I remember several of us be,
prominent Charleston fta)r‘hily to dinner and hearinggth' Y
famrly remark, “these are crltlcal trmes, l hope that we

quarters in the second tory of one of the,_,‘
invited us to their quarter for showers. We’had
downtown Stratford. We were there until July an
Engineers constructed barracks and administratrv_
moved. We had some magmflcent tlying experienc
many different fighters We got ln alot of individ‘ 1 flying or
two because aircraft availability was llmited 0 we didn’t hav ot of
training in combat flights. As a result lgotina lot of acrobatic practice.

The stress that the Natlon was under at the time was reflected in the
equlpment changes the Air Corps was going through From January to
July we checked out and flew P-36’ , P-38"s, P-39’s, P-40's and P47s. | .
think that | am right in that we (61 Pursuit Sqdn.) were one of the firstin
the Air Corps to get P-38’s and then almost lmmediately have them
transferred out and then become the first squadron to get the new P-47’s,

There were so many great flying experiences in those brief six months.
One of the most delightful memories that | have was when we still had P-
36’s and the days getting longer. Bob Hoke (Foster Fid. classmate) and |



would grab a couple of P-36’s and spend the early even_ ng it
fighting. We would go at it until we were exhausted l lo;

Durmg our tour at Stratford we also had an occa‘ i on to s
down town Manhattan (Church St) where '
manned by civulians, kept' ’ atch over




I als0 had a good friend (Renee) down at the Commodore Hot"‘l .:(Vaughn '
Monroe was playing there.) who ran the USO desk She provided'me wnth
all the free show -tickets that | needed :

Squadron thal jomed the 65"' Flghter Sqdn oi t""
~ other pals went to the 64" and 66™ Sqdns O’ ‘
< 65™ was due to an earlier incident when thr'
Jones, and my classmate, Jerry Brandon anc mt ; Ch
“to pick up three P-40s from the 65" and ferry th , m back to our sqdn at |
Stratford. Groton had a very short strip with a hlgh levee at the end of the |
runway. The Operations Officer; Capt. Art Salisbury, and his assistant,
Capt. GordonThomas, briefed us to be extremely aware of that levee
because of its height and the shortness of the field The GSth had already
lost some planes on rt Jerry took off; but he. dldn’t quite become airborne
and bellied it in on the levee Jones ground looped when we landed at
Stratford. | was the only one to deliver a fiyable airplane That's how lgot -
into the 65" when we reported in at Mitchell Fid.

The experience in joining the 65™ Fighter Sqdn. is one never to forget. The

original CO was Phil Cochran famous in Terry and the Pirates comic strlp
Phil was an Ohio State pal and class mate of the cartoonist, Milton Caniff ,
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who wrote Terry and the Pirates, so Phil appeared regularl  asi
in the strip. Phrl was famous in his own rlght as a squadron
All the pilots and men loved him and 65 was one “g
squadron When | mentioned that we had practrcall

firing runs on towed targets over Long I:
justa strong, innovative, lndlvudual
pilots and enlisted men. And because
and the gung-ho attitude of his | peo
Salisbury called us. Phil Gochran di
Salisbury took over the squadron wh
Africa. Salisbury, also a buddy of Ca
cartoon strip) were expe ted to abs
think “ﬂghter pllot ” One of our initlal b

In our initial brlefings at Mitchell Fld ‘we weren’t told any more o o
felt that we needed to know. The “wheels were extremely se _sltlveabout

- @ any possible leak relative to our destlnatlon or our means of gemng
there. But we did get to know that we had 72 brand new P-40F’s waltmg for
us at Mitchell Fid all palnted ina camouflaged desen pink. We practlced
short field takeoffs for a couple of days and then were told to tell our folks
so- long for now and that we would be in touch We were reduced to as few
belongings as we could pack in the baggage compartment of a P-40 and
into the gun bays in the wings. These were all our earlhly belongings.

We were briefed on the morning of our departure that we would be flying to
Quansett Pt. RI. ,and that we would be boardmg a carrier after landing.
Seventy two of us flew up lhere as directed and landed. |remember taxiing

11



off the end of the ru'nwéy and up beside this hu,g_e ship (|hadnever seen

one before.). Accustomed to filling our the Form-1 after landing, i,;,bég?n.
this little administrative chore when sailors draped my P-40 with a big net

and before | even got started on that Form 1, | was bemgholstedaboard B

that carrier. Wow!
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The Navy stored those 72 P-40s in the most imaginable ways.
stored in the hangar deck. Many were '"Sta"wpomtmg
cable secured to the ceiling. Room was critical, The res
the flight deck but in an area that stil| allo o

off. We were on th_e 'u.-s; Aircraft Carrier Rai gera
destroyers and the Cruiser, Juneau. =

U-boats. Our first stop for refueling w
across the Atlantic to Accra, Africa. 1
July we had our fireworks and | dont
Revolution. A German wolf pack was m
destroyers. We came outunscathedB
broadcast reported that the U.S. Ranger |

We took a very circultous route to avoid as n

A little over a hundred miles west of Accra, the Ranger headedftmajtﬁé .
wind and with full steam ahead we got about ) knots over the bow.
restricted our aircraft roll to 300 feet, which was just abreast o e control
center (they didn’t trust us aft of It.). But with t  distance and the 30 -

knots we all made it off even though there were some tense moments when

- the bow of the ship dipped down just 'as"ihé aircraft began to bieak':fréé.

All of us landed in Accra, although Buck Bilby a _grfé;’a_tpilot_.andi superman
landed short and trashed his P-40. Some of us stayed the night at this first
stop while others were led to the next stop.lead by British pilotsin _
Lockheed Hudsons or other twins. Six-Five St;ua’d_ron left the next day.
This turned out to be fairly hairy for me because that day we were flying in
and out of cloud cover. Atone point I became hopelessly vertiginous. This
is a feeling that | am unable to describe well other than to say that one
becomes totally disoriented. Up is down and down is up. And itis scary as
hell. The only thing I could do that day was to cling and I mean cling to the

wing of the element leader | was flying on. Finally after many minutes
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(seemed like an eternity) of this we broke out into the clear an ! hi gs
returned to normal. But then, we would encounter simrlar crrcumstances a
blt later. ‘ ' : -

Our first stop was Lagos. This was a primitive vstnp wj th
practice was to land and then taxi back up the strip to $0
many planes landing, the leader chose t ;o
so other planes could land behind. Tryi
ahead, | angled off the narrow road anﬁf ’_
under me in a soft shoulder. of course, | got th
This was the first of my debacles V

“Jeeter Yates, a huge man and a great gent"" a
Group Commander) was in charge ofa ma
inaC-47. Among his crew was one Serg /he Ot
ofa genlus They had an extra prop and Skeets Gall g ] | his cre had
me whole again in a matter of hours. R |

But now | am behind the rest of my mates and stuck ln ’ ”gos So
later a British crew- came through: escortmg,B tlsh; Hur cal
Spitfires. | jolned with them and| stayed wlth thls group until we et'to
- Kano. There a simiilar sltuatlon occurred with alrcraft landing and aircraft
- having landed, taxiing up the same strlp lam trymg to be careful asa
whole flight of B-25’s are Ianding and.my ﬂight of Hurricanes is taximg
back. After completlng one of my clearing turns, | am suddenly ready to
cut the tail off a stranded Hurricane. Oops, slam on the brakes the nose
goes down and the tail comés up. I getthe prop again. | don’t enjoy
gaining this kind of fame. '

So Jeeter Yates and his crew show up once more, but now they don’t have

any more props. The innovative sergeant, Skeets Gallagher just saws off
a portion of each blade and hammers the balance to straighten. | test the
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plane and we determrne that we can go on. Butr now 1 amaloneagaln, and '
have to wait for a suitable escort. Tl

While | am awaltmg escort at Kano, a ﬂrght of American
Hudsons readies for takeolt The stnp at Kano is still
and the work is all done with native manual ' )
workers out on the runway with tam}
material to make a hard surface. Wh
the lead native ordered a learlng Sl
cylindrical type horn bl,, w;'the alert ai
Several hundred took h en atop hu
stored alongside the runway As I wa
“about 100 feet and suddenly stalled, fell
accumulation ot barrels'and workers "T -

these flights across Africa were appointed as our ow‘
were given several months salary I am sure that the
their cash ln a smgle container and when the shlp cra : , ‘
drove the bills up with the smoke and fire. | describe this in ide t where
all the crew perished and many of the natlve workers as well because it.

was one of the gravest | saw durlng the war. I dud see others but none as

gruesome.

I finally muddled my way to the last stop prior to Khartoum, Sudan. (| hope
that 1 can identrly some of these stops before | fimsh thls report.) Therel
had my battery go bad, and | had to wait for a replacement | finally got the
battery, but then | am alone agam Fmally one day, a Pan American pilot
flying a C-47 came through and | had a chance to talk over my plight with
him. He said, “hell I'll take you to Khartoum.” So, he did and I spent the
next 300 miles on the wing of a C-47. It’s not the most comfortable kind of
flying but | was grateful for someone to lead the way. | finally got to |
Khartoum where all my mates were waiting for me and a few others who
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had had ditficulty getting across. we partied a couple of

north along the Nile to Cairo. One of our first stops afte
Wadi Halfa. The desert heat was intense. we werelandm
background. It was virtually impossible to judge distai
there wasn’t a one of us that didn’tvle\ié,l’ offhigh s 1
bn landing. Fortunately, no one banged up an

Well, we had other ,Stqpsjafrlong thé;Niié and:
glimpse of the famous pyramids as well. W
and then flew on to Maquebelia, Palestine. '
stayed there for training with the British i
in Cyprus. | loved the bri_.éf,_ per[odw '» had
Mediterranean, nig'ht clubs wereacﬁv :

British Royal Air.‘ Force. And all meals,b
the British. Remember, they had spemseveralyearsover
direst of situations and their lo_g"is'ktl_cs’ were poor atbest Ou
had only recently come aboard as active participants. Jusi togiveyou
some idea of the rations, we virtually lived on s up, tea, bully beef herd.
biscuits and bread. Now, the bfead;th’ié was ked somewhere, god
knows where, and had been stored for ages. It had become wormy. The
British learned to cope \'Mi'tl,itheéé~¢ir¢umfstané‘e&sihav}ing been there for
years. They simply “pre-flighted” the bread, removed the worms and went

v

on from there. We Americans learned to cope too!

Well, our little vacation in Cyprus had to come to an end jand we were

alerted for our return to Palestine to join with the rest of the Group. The

day before | met with another of my disasters. | was trying to become one

of the hottest pilots in 65, trying to learn the really tight landing pattern that
a good fighter pilot mastered. | was really tight and in my rolj om, a cross-
wind picked up my right wing causing a damaged wing tip to the left. Oh, is
me. |am really famous now. My buddies from my previous 61 Sqdn had

16




been coming to my defense saying, “look this guy can ﬂyauuwasnt
proving it. . g

So, | am delayed again while this modest fix gets done'
Squadron returns to Palestine A few days later, | ar

closmg inonme. | dldn’t know what the hell to do, S
and tried to make them understand that I wasn’t a German
had seen me drop that belly tank and were sure that I was
place. Trymg my best to molllty this crowd Twas rellev Se
weapons carrier racing toward me and comlng to my rescue.,;

I finally got back to Palestine.. 'We were there for a few more days training |

with the British and then we were alerted to go to our first combat base in
the desert. This was labeled LG-174. When I reported 10, my squadron, Art

1 Sal:sbury, now a major, said, “damn Duke you ve had a tough tlme, I hope

. that you get the first 109.” | can't tell anybody how much that meant to me

at the time and how much it has stuck with me all these years Many
commanders would have tied a tin can on me and sent me on my way. But
from that day on, peers and superiors alike respected my flying in the

squadron. Thanks Art.

I got a replacement airplane when we got to LG-174 and we were assigned
temporarily to a South African Sqdn. that had been battling the Germans
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for years, so the members were veteran combat pllots My ﬂrst,m" ssion '
with them wasn’t a howllng success erther When we C start ‘

catch the others Brand new and lnexp
returned to the landing strip After the

South Africans were rncomparably articulate when it car
ut ” :

Our early missrons in the Western Desert consrste'

missions. 1 h ,;beenfassig
new plane with the number 41. lwas in Leo Marg ia s"A" Flight. 1

_ ‘Hahn-a ndsome young rnan
smart as hell. His buddy Bob Furman crewed another plane and helped our

crew whenever he was needed. Bill became the head of the squadron

armament section and would have been a squadron co if he had been a

pilot.

My first encounter with 109 activity occurred after we strafed a German air

strip at dawn and got quite a few 109’s on the ground The after math of
that mission was a bit exciting. 1 refer you to the attached report

(Attachment No.1 ) that I had submitted to a Dr. Molesworth who was

writing a book on P-40 wartime activities. That report also describes a

couple of other 109 encounters and one hellish encounter with ground fire.
- (Also see Moon Maloneys letter (Attachment No. 3.) sent to me years after
the war, enclosing a copy of the public release that describes the later
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missron Moon was, in addition to being a combat prlot,°ur publrc :
relations officer.) Lo

A lot of our missions consisted of dlve-bomber (five h;
bombs) and strafing (50 cal. ) missions. We would be
certain area of the bomb line where troop tanks
. reported. Some trmes these mlsslons were

from 88 millimeter guns if were higher. | re
how you could recerve so much ground. frre
after. You just have to credit the Germans with a very s
conceal these arms. :

The desert is a unique environment. In many ways, | if e as’ to go to war
itis the ideal arena. You do little damage to anythin anel
Usually the weather is rdeal but it can also be a vr'

trying to survive during a dust storm. These can_"':_jk

sand permeates every part of your llving, eating, and equlpment. One of ‘
the virtues of the oid P-40 was its superior lnsensmvlty to blowrng sand.
But it was not lmmune The crews had to spend a lot of time after one of
these storms cleaning sand out of every corner and mche of the plane

I have not given the British 8" Army the due it deserves. | mentioned that
we were assigned to the Desert Air Force under the command of General .-
~ Montgomery. The Germans had almost overcome the 8™ Army in‘its
'pursurt to take Cairo and then the Suez Canal. The Germans stopped just
short of Cairo because they had outrun their support. Apparently Hitler
had decided not to invest more in the Afrika Korps because of higher
priorities. This gave the British, now Supported by Americans, a chance to
revitalize the 8'™. And this they surely did. American support in the way of
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planes and especially Sherman tanks was vital to the burld jp ot:”he 8"‘

General Montgomery was a careful and imaginatrve com’

targets and to keep us informed of enemy arrcraft
nothlng but totat respect tor the 8"' Army A

come to mind that are not necessartly in tlme sequence

For some reason this one registers We had been in the desert for months
and we had progressed to an area | belleve up around Marbte Arch '

by Tom Clark our operatlons ottlcer We came. upon a small group ot three
gazelle and the chase began. Now the desert isn’t like a freeway it's

» rough There are mounds, sage brush and other ﬂora that | don’t recalla -
name for. Gazelle can move. So did Tom in this weapons carrier. We
careened about for a mile or so chasing this one gazelle Fmally the.
gazelle began to tire and we got close enough to take a shot. We were all -
armed with carbines. My buddy, and room mate Harry Stantord got a shot
that broke theGazelle’s spine . The poor animal just dropped down to. his .
knees helpless. We came upon him and with his pleadmg soft brown eyes|
was no longer a gallant hunter. Stan had a 45 cal with himand |

said,”Stan, put this poor beast out.” Stan Iet go from hip—h:gh range that

flat missed with two shots and a third that put a slug through the gazelle’s
jaw. The gazelle is still lookmg up, pleadingly. “God | said, Stan, kill it.”



With that Stan put the barrel on the animal’s head and pulled the trigger
That gazelle didn’t taste so good to me when we 000ked;t‘_up e

coveted splrits ln fact when we could W
of a bar was prescient. When Gil came u'
alummum adorned with lhe name of every
famous sc:uadro‘n emblem, The ‘F'ighti"rig‘g c

We moved frequently and the first tent to go up contamed the “o ( flub” bar
To this day, almost 60 years later, itis still a morale symbol for those of use

that stiil remain. (The Fighting Cock emblem was the creatuon of Mniton |
Caniff who designed it for his friend Phll Cochran, lhe first commander of

65.)

A side llght to this story must include the eventual fate of the bar. Gil was
instrumental in getting the Smithsonian to accept the bar when our 57*
Group inactivated on our arrival in the States in 1945. It presently is on
loan to the New England Air Museum in Hartford, OIf.- The bar will never
die. Gil had vision. | |

Well we flew hard, we drank hard, we played hard and we had some
- memorable visits to Alexandria and Cairo in the months lhal we spent in
the desert. After about 30 missions, 9" Air Force (our American
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Headquarters) had a policy to glve pilots a tew days Ieave in either of these
two cities. | may relate some stories about these visits but l am
considering putting them in an aside. :

Going back to my buddy Bob Hoke. When we were-sin*c:
relief from combat | talked to Bob about my '
this conflict. It wasn’t Icoking so good B

of combat pilots to experience a penod of “chicken-shut” and then recover.
I know others who had similar experiences | think that it might be good
counsel for any new pilot heading for combat that he or she be advised that
there will be a period of doubt and fear and that it can be overcome. After |
hit 50 missions, | don’t deny that | was scared as hell attimes but | became
fairly immune to the “clank” factor, and it became a matter of “lets go.”

I think it is worthy to note something about the attitude and character of the
57th personnel Initially we were pretty-well stuck with the personal items
that we had brought over in our P-40’s. We really didn’t have the kind of -
clothing that was suitable for desert conditions—either for the intense heat,
the cold nights in the fall, or the footwear that was so accommodating to
sand conditions. The British, having been there for years, had mastered all
of this. So, we adopted their style, clothing, footwear and especially their
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desert tents I mention this because we were not model'“:'v
decorum with respect to appearance. People [
bought desert boots, etc- We became a pre ty i
for rank and MISSlON wrtue were never com rom ed

| ,' was expe
the invasuon Nothing occurred and I ch; ged it up to typri
error. The next misslon went out and m' ‘ o

1943 ! belreve we claimed some 72 planes shot down! Some of the' |
replacement pilots that | had trained in the precedlng weeks were on thls
_mlssion and secured victories, Some were on. there first or second
missions! Thereis a lot of exlsting llterature on this famous effort so |
won’t try to go on further with it other than to say that it is to this day, that I
missed it, is one of my most dusappolnting experlences ' '

incidentally, the mght following the devastation to German forces we were
visited by several JU-88 bombers They came over our strip, dropped
flares and spent the next hour dropplng bombs up and down the strip.
They had to contend with British anti-aircraft Boffer guns but they of
course had no fear of fighter lnterception I believe that we only lost one
pilot due to this rald, but we did have some wounded and my personal tent
was riddled with holes. I had taken evasive action in a trench which we

A




usually tried to have excavated next to our tents whenever we ot
new location.. We also excavated desert trenches through
areas for latrine purposes. One could make a mistake in. p_
that | chose that night in my panic just happened tot
In Wayne Dodd’s excellent history of the our Gro up
Group” there is a picture of me standing beslde my ridc

I have written about an episode involving the re
abandoned-German BF109’s Sincel ‘had
planes all | wanted to have in the way of
one of those aircraft. Just north of us
British and there had been some 109's and ;
abandoned by the Axis forces ‘when the we
We got wind of these and we. sent up: so
one ready to fly. ‘A few days, later, ourf‘f"l'ine

ass-chewer and Iso young that I had no comeback whatsoever other than
to salute smartly and get the hell out of there. Bennedict listened to all of
this and after | left and the CO departed Bennedict went over to the British
guard and sweet-talked him into sitting in the 109. I should note. that
Bennedict had transferred to our outfit from the RAF ‘where he had been

| stationed in Britain. He knew how to talk to that guard But Bennedict had
other plans than to just sit i in the airpiane. He actually got the guard to help
him start it up and with that he flew it out of there and back to our strip at
-El Djem. A few days later he bellied it in because of engine failure. A note -
on Bill Bennedict. He was always in to something. He was a superb pilot
and | used to say to people, “you can’t imagine any incident however
extreme or fanciful that Bennedict has not exceeded in real Jife.” (This is
not the end of my 109 stories.)
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some minor operations on the Island of Pantelerla and mto*M Ita Et‘the end
of the African campaign. At this point nearly all the orlgin €
scheduled to return to the States. A few of us were reta ‘
squadrons to help train new replacement pilots. Gllf{' t
65th Sqdn. CO and | became hls operations offi"cer

forgotten how long;, but It was a nice interrupt N ool
the other things we: acquured were a coupie ot fairly' ‘

Our next move was to Malta after it had been: secured. We were there
briefly. After the British 8" Army secured the. somhern ‘side of srciiy&we
went in as soon as the engineers had prepared a strlp at the town of
Pecino. We operated daily agamst the German transport and other targets

of opportunity

The big deal in my life there was the acquisition ‘of 'six M.E. 1097s; “Soon -
after we got to Pecino we learned that'the Luftwaffe had departed astrip
fairly close to our Pecino area in a real hiirry andleft several: aircraft in
various states of repair. As | have previously noted, the 109 was my
mission in'life. So | got Sgt. Fred Symank and his crew together 10:go -
down and see what they could make out of what was' there Fred Symank
was a magnificent mechanic and a wondrous person. He could justdo
anything. Well, Fred went down with his handpicked crew and in afew
days he called me and said he had a 109 that was flyable. After I got there
Fred gave me a cockpit check and interpreted all the German Instruments
for me. He advised me that the propeller control, flaps, and gear were all

electrically operated. He also advised me that the alternator did not work,

/m?%
25 | wu

we’)

\



orders were Major Jim Curl, Major Glade Bilby, 64" , Edward ijl:",letcher, 64"’ .
and and Capt Edward Ellington, 65 th.” T

attendant personnel slowly unloaded a
back to Cairo on our plane The Bntis'

beside the awaiting c-47 aircraﬂ the co
" the waist up and dressed with lndian'wa - pa

Speatrfish, S. D »

Comment: | think Dale may have used a'llttl‘e lm "

Also, | was lean and brown, so| ;ust must be lndlan lcarried along wllh
this fantasy and when we were aboard the Ranger, after takmg some
kidding about belng Indian, one day'l went to the shlps barber and said
“Ok, give me an Iroquois haircut.” Boy, did he take me at my word! And of
course, for weeks, | really did look like and Iroquois But the rest of Dales

story Is pretty accurate.

The men mentioned in those orders eventually arrived back in the States
Buck Bilby and | reported to 1" AF Headquarters in Manhattan and | was
assigned to Richmond Virginia for familiarization in P-47’s. We were
granted liberal leaves. | got to see all of my relatives and my dear folks in
Spearfish. | reported back to Richmond and spent several weeks there
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doing some happy flying. All of us were regular attendant _'at'the Iocal
USO officers club and many patriotic Ruchmond glrls were steady
hostesses ~

After our train'ing perio'd at Richmond 1 Was as‘s'i'g”nfedfto

| you can be the escort ofﬂcer for the two squadrons graduating al
Wendover.” But this assingment had to awalt graduatlon of the two
squadrons of new pilots

- I don't suppose that | need to mention that we returnees spent a lot of time
at the bar and so | had several good drinkmg buddies. One of them was
Frank Gaunt that | mention here because he is part of a tale | want to spin
later. As a matter of fact I-could spent as many pages as| have already

‘written about activities at Wendover, but one | ‘d like to relate is one
involving a WASP (Womens Auxiliary Service Pilot) pilot. Occasionally we

- would get replacement planes and some were flown in by WASP pilots

One day, a couple of P4{7’s came in and oné of the pilots made one of the

hottest approaches to the Iandlng strip that we had seen. (All of us were

thinking “hot” when we put a P-47 aircraft in the landing pattern; we wouid
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come down to the deck, break sharply up and then o the[eft v
the tightest circular pattern the aircraft could mamtam,
off the deck, level off and set the bll’d down ) Well thls

woman !

. Itis funny why some stories seem to stick to your
this one on the WASP an‘oiher occurs to m
think funny. Charley Mize was a young lieut
advocates.” We spent alot of time at the bar
to Salt Lake City or some other venue in ’
Charley was a non-flyer but he had come
in commumcations He had been associat, >2d W

going through some routine and one of our Ies, pe j‘onai;ty-l,__ﬁ d
associates was heckling him. This kept going on nd our heckler. would say
things like, “oh, I bet I know how you did that.” Charley could do this stuif
half snockered. But he finally had had enough heckling --S0, over
emphasizing his indulgence with the spirits accudentally dropped the
deck of cards down in front of the heckler. Well, the heckler quickly came

~ to Charley’s-aid recoverlng the cards. While the heckler was engaged
picking up cards, Charely slipped an Ace of spades behind his collar. Of
course all the audience saw Charley’s careful insert. But he went on with
more tricks receiving more heckling.

Finally, Charley (wearing a short sleeve uniform shlrt) stretched out both
hands in front of the heckler so he would see that there was absolutely
nothing in them and no sleeves to hide anything. Then he reached
carefully behind the heckler’s head and retrieved the Ace of spades placing
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it full before him. That brought down the house and no further kibrtzmg
from the heckler. He never knew : :

caper; shots, clothmg, etc. Then we were sent
for eventual boardmg of troop ships for our

pretty cocky, and l saId “sergeant who is the omma
Air Force?. He told me, and | said, “can we get:'hlm on the ph: 2” 1w
' bluffing all the way, but the sergeant wasn’t sure, so he sard,’f“ arp t, woulc
you like to pick all the replacement pllots ing ¢ tthe 57""7 1 said “I sure
would.” And that’s how the bluff worked out and| got to plck about 30 plus
of the pilots going to my old Group. Worked out. pretty good and 1 got to
my old Squadron. (There isa good book that details the operatrons of this
phase of the war written by one of the pilots that I brought from Wendover.
He kept a daily diary, an excellent work, which he reproduced in the book
and then commented on the entries that he had made  during the war. One
of the significant points of the book is his identifying how many of his
contemporaries were casualties in the penod from November 1944 unﬂl
cessation of hostilities in Apnl 1945, [Grandpa s War” by Ken Lewls])

When, { got back to the old outfit, many of the crew that I had had a hand in
training as reptacement pilots in N. Aftica were now in positions of
authority. Spank Manda, a marvelous prlot and super guy was the
squadron operations officer. Dick Hunziker was now the Group
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Operations Officer. MY old friend, Gil Wymond the squadron commander,

motor transport in the pass or approachlng the pass :

I should not pass over this phase of the ltalran campalgn too qurc' Iy. I
was in the early stages of my return to co; m bat that | met Doro
She was a nurse with the 105" Station H ’spital One-D-Flve
Mussolini’s modern hospltal bulldrngs a jacent to our air s/trlp:\ st.,'niéi"
Dottie when she was escorted by Gll Wymond to one of our squ dron ,
parties. | was truly Impressed! Some how lcutinon Gil’s relationship and
began dating Dottle regularly In January of 43, we were together and |
“borrowed™ Dick Hunziker’s jeep so that we could go out to the Group S
beach house. This was a pleasant venue; good food, nice furnishmgs, -
fireplaces and in January it made for a cozy retreat. We were bound outin
‘darkness. Hunz’s jeep was a poor contraptlon, but it motored and
lurthermore we mostly traveled with mlnimum llghts whlch was the practice
so as not to encourage any maraudlng German arrcraft. ‘We had had
several days of hard rain and some ﬂoodlng was prevalent. Dottie and |
came to a bridge that had been knocked out when the army routed the .

. Germans from this area. Our Corps of Engineers had putin a temporary
bridge that served well. However, this night the flooding had taken the
bridge out and when we approached all we faced was a deep gorge with the
remaining slabs of concrete from the permanent bridge at the bottom. |
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don’t know what would have happened to us rf we had gone ln there but I
know that it wouldn’t have been healthy I slammed on? { e brakes*and'the
old jeep jack-knifed to the rlght into the concrete rall D ‘
injured. She suffered a broken right knee, broken right

damage to the rlght ankle which was caught betwee ¢ ’h‘

military encampments I started to run (
truck approached from the other side
course the open chasm before them

‘got us both to Dottie s hospital A fine Jdoct
Dottie’s knee, placed a silver pin to stab

up north to see her and contmue our courtship The army, very
conveniently, had a landing strip next door to the hospital Dottie returr ed
to the States ina patient hospital ship in April of 1945 and was recove g
at Crile General Hospital in Cleveland when | got back in September and
married her tlve days later! | iumped ahead there a bit but that is a most

|mportant part of my story and | had to tell it all.

Back to the war. We inherited a concept from earlier operatlons that was
called “Operation Strangle " The 57" operated out of Corsica and could be
behind the German army within minutes because of the Corsica advantage.
The order was “shoot everything that moves.” This might include mule
driven carts, trucks of course, and especially trains. (The movie,
“Thunderbolt”, an excellent documentary, is about the campaign while the }
Group was stationed in Corsica. | was not present for any of the COl'Slcai‘l

operations. )
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Sometimes the implementation of this concept was overlyfaggressive On
at least three occasions I've had to pull off my attackmg fi ;v(hat were

States and marry his- Iong time sweet he'art.’ I'then
commander. A

To better pursue the retreating German Army_iour G roup
- strip just south of Lake Garda ‘We had some ery long
into the northern most parts of Italy This was a matter
then the war ended. We were then returned to our oldstrip;;at C

Italy. -

There we learned that the 57* was scheduled to go to the Philig
participate in the war agalnst Japan. As we prepared to go th
was necessary to take all of our P-47’s down to Napl“ for pre nfor
sea voyage. We were then without airplanes and furthermore we dtime
on our hands.

Dick Johnson, the CO of 66 Squadron, and | had become very good friends
Dick was/is an incomparable pilot. He built airplanes before the war and -
had been an aeronautical engineer student at Minnesota. We were totally
different in many ways, He was smart. He dldn’t drlnk He dldn’t party He
enjoyed a good time, had a great sense of humor, but he didn‘t need the
companionship of bar patrons. Airplanes were his love. But he liked my
style of flying—which was a little wild-ass.. As | mentioned we had this L-5
and Dick and a sergeant had scrounged the elements for another airplane
an L-2. So, | got to fly the L-2. But, as | mentioned, we had time on our
hands. Dick suggested that we go down to Naples where there was a
British Depot and a huge bone yard of damaged airplanes—all types. We

34




all the dope and fabric work on the damaged parts ,ofg he
wings. i

The C-61 had been used solely by the British Dick;
. Kind of person, was abl‘ "'o_talk them out
propeller. And when our guys got all this oo '
airplane. Dick and | ferried it back to Grosseto.and'our

We did a lot of flying together and as well as indlv’
shouldn’t tell this tale, b 't.it is no secretva ow.
squadron bar we were having one of our ]
with one of my new pilots, he revealed tha he had ne
acrobatics. | couldn’t believe that | had heard sucha
pilot. So, | said, “get your heimet.” We went down
cranked up our C-61. Off we went and climbed ‘overt
There we began a series of-loops . and immelmans an 4 as ciates
maneuvers. I'll admit that we both had several retllis at the bar But after
about 30 minutes, I noticed a whole gang of cars llning the arrstrip .
Remember, itis tctally dark But with the intrusion of the cars along the
runway, | knew we were in trouble So, we had to get the plane on the
ground. We really dldn’t need the cars. The plane had a Ianding light and
that was all we needed. But the Group Commander, Jeeter Yates, my old.
tnend from 1942, had ordered the “new Iighting system.” Well, we landed
and | parked the plane in its spot and Jeeter met me at the cabin door.
“Major Ellington, | am relieving you of your command, and | am ordering a
blood alcohol as soon as you can get to the doctor’s office.” Jeeter was so
mad he was white and if you remember he was a giant of a man. He could
strike fear! Capt Dr. Fonda, my squadron doctor, was standing by to take
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me to the clinic. (According to Dick, we had a liﬂle exchange of blood
samples that evening.) . R

This incident blew over and thlngs returned to normal

when my turn came to get in some P-47
down to the 325 Frghter Group, also on

ot

to give me a bird Well we polished off his'bottle Then most surprisip__ﬁgly,
Frank asked, “are you ready to fly?” Well hell yes, | couldn't chrcken out
now. So we go outto a nice p-51 D and Frank gives me a complete cockpit
check. | assume that he is going to take off in anoiher airplane and iake me

'around the area. But he says “Duke, | am not ieelmg all that well you ]ust
 go on.” | spent a little time familiarizing myself with the cockpit and then |
started it up and taxied out. | lined up, gave it the goose and was just
‘barely airborne when I got the buzz of my life right over the top of my
airplane. Frank had gone down, gotten in his plane and was already
airborne when | staggered into the air. We spent the next 30 minutes in the
damndest dog frghi I had ever been in. We were right on the deck and
performing every maneuver we knew to get on each other’s tail. After a
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while, Frank really did become il and so we both landed lt was a helluva
flight. : e :

came down after Dick land'ed and Withom an
doubt said, “you get that g .d. airplane bac
get it off.”

It wasn’t too long after this incident that we we

prepare for our departure for the Philippines j
duties attended to and the transport of our mel
two airplanes to ferry down. Dick gota pilot;
and | went down in the C-61. |

positions in a combat zone. Why we even had contro owersl (For an old
desert veteran who had operated in the minimalists of condituons,
operations now were just too muchl.) *

Anyhow, we had no radio in the bird. So,when we get to Ciampino we just
decided to land into the wind. (It’s an old habit.) So »Dicl_(' landed following
the L-2. Knowing that the L-2 would pull off very shortly he just landed.
over the top of h'irn.‘ It was perfectly safe and he knew what he was doing.
Well the tower came apart and filed a flight vrolations report on us that
became the biggest thing in 12" Air Force (that is until later when Dick
buzzed General McNarney’s HQ tent on the beach!). For the flight to Naples,
I took off from Ciampino and the report further describes my failure to file,
etc (Just to verify this story, Pll attach the formal correspondence that
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describes these "felonies.") We didn’t get off. the hook for thlsltracas.,.unm
we appeared before the Chief of Staff of 12"' Air Force W jot the wire
brush treatment but slid off without any real damage or in]u h
good war records and | suppose that may have been taken into account
since after all even the weenies in Hq were aware that their mnssaon was
combat. : : e _ :

I did mention that sput and polish had beco
didn’t pay much attention to speed and
motor vehicles. But they did in Naples
enforce it. One day, Drck in his ]eep,
prerogatives when the: MP nailed him 1
conversation between Dick and. the MP
up in jail with his jeep impounded He :c
~ him out of jail. And I can’t for the life: of me mbe
compound to free Dick. But nevertheless we left free

Well, that’s not the end of the story. After our conironta"""‘i’"
_in Ciampino our C-61 had also been lmpounded a
Naples. They probably were in the middle ot a staﬂ S
with an airplane that had no connections with the U.S, Army Air Cc ps, had
no proper markings, and that was piloted by a couple ol‘ felons. SO whlle
they were pondering thls, Dick decided to go up and take a look at our old
airplane. This led toa ﬂlght off the strip (he commandeered it) and a Iittle
recce of the area which ended. up with an aggressive buzz job down.at the
- beach. That area just happened to be General McNarney s (who was CG of
all army forces in Italy) beach house General Mc was not pleased with this
‘demonstration and now we are really in deep doo dool. I'm so hazy about
the details of many of these incidents and especially this one, since | was
not a party, | will run all this by Dick Johnson and have him refine the
commentary. Maybe it was after this episode that we “got to visit 12" Air
Force Headquarters.”(Our little episode with the tower violation is a part of
official correspondence included here as Attachment 3.)
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| should add to this a historical note on Dick Johnson. lmmed f t" “iy after
the war he was assigned to Wright Field as a test pilot H bec melthe

operations officer of the unit and top of the fline test pllot ra
Dynamics got into trouble in the development of the F-1
to join General Dynamlcs and do the test work on the X
airplane had not performed well before Dle got the
helped develop a good airplane He became th" hi
GD through the development of the F-1 06 and th -F-16.

We did head for the Phllippmes 13 was a Iong boat t
outside of the Panama Canal when President Truma
drops on Japan. There is now substantral controver
but some of us are gratetul If we had gotten to the.t,
participated in the Asian war maybe things would not have turned ou

well individually.

We were turned around and debarked at Boston Harbor. We t00
from Boston to Tampa, FL where the squadron was to be dea
leave and headed for Crile General Hospital in Cleveland. You know the

rest of the story.
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~ ATTACHMENT 1
(Response to Dr. Molesworth)




ATTACHMENT NO. 1

2/5/00

Dear Dr. Molesworth,

now 80 years old, whose memory is poor,
of that never kept any records of any kind

I joined the 65" Fig In. at Mitche
Information was | outina
realize that we we
days of practice at'

So, to answer your
- think most of us|
of us gotinto th
was uppermost
_ recognizing the r

get them), P-39’
get them). Allth
explain our experi
and P-39’s. | can’
only say we wer
personal experie
genuinely pleased to new P- |
. joined the 57™ in July. And, | can add, our faith in
confirmed, especially with the conditions we encount
Desert. | flew 116 missions without an engine failure while abusing the
engine at times with extreme power settings. (I did lose the P-40 that | flew
off the carrier when returning from Cyprus to Palestine prior to combat
operations. That was not the fauit of the engine but rather because of a
modification—a sand screen that was installed for ground operation that
inadveratently closed in flight shutting down the engine.) ‘

Yes, there were some memorable experlences. The first, and | do not hav
dates, but in October of 1942, were still flying out of Landing Ground 174, °




our first desert combat assignment. Our then Sq
Art Salisbury (later Group Co and Col.), lead an a
hit a German airstrip on the coast at El Daba (I bel;
Your questions seem to indicate a curiosity abou
to mission situations, so I'm stressing these asp,
Remember, at this point, we are really |
reconstituted as an American unit after
British. We are assigned this early |
anticipation and tension are at
a (3) squadron formation, maintai
out to sea. | don’t reme! our fligh

deck. | was :
power settings. I heard a frz
straight, turn, turn, turn
Then | heard the same:
turn!” Then I looke
with a deadly I

of 64 sqdn-’Whowas' aamg e sque
cope with 109°s in this situation, ou

as we headed for safety in the bowels of the Qutarr:
of range of 109’s. We lost two piiots thatday. ;

* Another memorable occasion; again eari
morning escorting B-25’s 1 o |
Sqdn Co after Art Salisbury b

the Matruh or Sidi Barani area wh

harassment from above
turn into them. They w
time and had made se
vertical turn into:them,:
lucky because it impacted the
(large enough for my m

ways). Th

flew. But | was in a state of panic, knowing that
again and | had.very poor maneuverability. The

I flew. B in

truly at a peak. As amatter of fact, |
, d Knowing that | was vulnerable that | failed to recognize a
friend in Bill McGill trying to join up with me during the melee of battle (I
learned this later.). He knew who | was but all | saw was prop and spinner
apparently trying to get a bead on me. |thought that it was another 109. |

- then dove for the deck,’ﬂn‘din_‘g what | thought was security just above the
waves. | flew well behind friendly lines, then turned landward and back to




my strip. | dwell on the panic here to emphasuze the |mpo
experlenee, after 50 missions or so, one be S more ad
environment. 1 think we were all 00 new to be really go«
had a mere 100 hours of fighter time when we joined the 57
probably average. And during the period of thi
Corps didn’t really have a lot of experience ti
- We did train with the British before goil
term and speaking for myself an un"
found the whole exper" ' -
matter of flying the airp
- circumstances—desert,
kind of thing that is o
living under primi
bathing, laundry, "
well, but the poi

- become profe

' Another somewhat hair rising. m”"': o
were on the deck str A

remember if these.
airplane was gush

missing My appearance, taxing into my own. revetmentvvlith?i néwisi'rblane
after taking off on a mission, was hard to explain o ‘

I am surprised that you refer to ,r_r_lyclaimmg a probable 1,09 fkill 0 March
-1943. | have no access {¢ ord and | do, 1o
have them. If you are ref« 1]t ;sion wher

* shot down (I believe that was Marble.Arch), then ¢
- Snead was my flight commander andI'was in his -
escorting medium bombers and were heavily attached by 109’ .
became one big melee with airplanes going every which way. lju ped on
the tail of a diving 109 and followed him down through a few thousand feet
firing 50 cal and watching a mass of tracers seemingly enter throughout the
fuselage. |did not see this airplane go down and | had to break off so | '
cannot make any major claim. In fact this is the way | reported it and | am
surprlsed if they gave me a probable on it.




Most of the Ranger originals rotated back to the States after ot
Palm Sunday Massacre which | am sure you will read abe
those on that mission. (I was a flight commander at this :
intelligence reporting a possible mass evacuation from
day or two. | scheduled myself for the dawn mission. No
Just another damn bit of poor-information. Aha, it was tt
and I'missed itl) B

like to brag al
did successfully-
with the combat effort I’

I spent a year in the States in training outfit:
- of our two P-47 Fighte
ltaly in Nov. of 1944.

Sqdn. and came in as
Wymond was still CO
trained in Africa) was
down in Northern Haly in. )44, and
Wymond then rotated in April or May and | became Sqdn

war ended in Haly, | had some 180 missions.

Slated t
finished in ltaly. Our planes were al
the Philippines in August of 1945. i de t :
\ghetn the bomb was dropped. We were turned around and debarked in |
oston. ‘ Lottt , _ 4 aebar ,

944, and | be

I might add, that the 57" was

I stayed in the Air Force and retired in 1968 as a colonel.

Some of the data that you have requested may not be available. Ifrankly
don’t know the number of my airplane (strange as that may seem). | know
that we for the most part didn’t take time to paint on names. So I'didn’t.
My crew chief was Royball. My armorer was Bill Hahn. Pictures | may have
some that will confirm some of my claims. Especially the ones about the

“holes.” I'll search.

Sincerely,

Ed Ellington




combat than | ﬁ
wrote hlm, that l

retrain, and reattack. Lopez outﬂt was alw‘aysy in the thrus
while ours was constantly running :






Attachment 2
(Cairo/Alex)




ATTACHMENT NO. 2

In Cairo, Doll’s Cabaret was a favorite nigh,tjfétopfof :viSiti'_:' :

personnel. You could get anything at Doll’s including a goo
on earth that came from was anybody’s guess. -

Bob Hoke and | wére g

Well, we got staggerin

accosted by a nat

were waiting t
City, so we follo .
flight of stairs and into a
or so was lying 1 O
Bob and | weren’t sain
Middle East, so.we de

is gentl

On one of my visits to Cairo,
way out and near the form:

Shepherds looks like any other desert location (but in broad da light?
was it? Iforget,-); ' ST S kb

I hope that you forgive the admission of these -'st@rlés.*

\lexandria, Egypt. | am pretty sure
er from 64

Another time | got to visi
at the Hotel Leroy. Ed F
That was the time that:
Cross in Alexandria. Ed Fletcher
‘partied relentlessly. Ed could muster dialog | nt kg
the night clubs in the most comedic fashior » night we in one of
the most fashionable clubs in Alex. It so hap at Art and Nanc

were also dining there and the evening entertainment was in tull sw
managed to get into the swing of things and the first thing you know we
became part of the entertainment group. |-am up there with Ed when.Art
calls from his table asking me just what am I doing up there. Not having
any reasonable answer, | just said that | was on the schedule and pulled




out a phony paper to claim my position. Well

. ; A , everybody knew we were
well into our cups and let us go at that. B
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SOBJECT: Lotter of ‘l‘rananittal
T Ghnanding General, Arnw Alr- !erce‘

B 1. n:u requeated that the 4m 'leu
_ ‘to neaaquai‘tm mghter
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your office for your infomatioa and

' your Hcadquarters fcr action s you deem nmuary.
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COPY | o . goPY
Hmmumrm¢ WL _c_o___ |

_14,19th AAF BASE UNIT o

EROPEAN TTVISION, -AIR ‘mms*-om cmm-s -
APD 512, U. S. ARMY

16 aay g,

166,111

BRI Violatian of Flying Regulauona.. e

1 ¢ Deputy Aasistmt Chief of %A""ff :
" RkAF Bage l!nit, EUR“-ATO, A“!) 51

1. The following vielat.icn of -

2. At appmxiaazoly o
alreraft, Ne. XKA33; aasigne
RiF, lecation unknown, and piloted 1
eemz:ittsd the fellowmg viola ::zen at |

a. Lmded dewnwind , ,'

b. Lsnded against two (2) ed "

a, -Lmdeﬂ south downmwind whil a.

‘ to u stop after havi @

d. %hen given the-red 11
landing aircraft an ‘
which had landed in }i e oppesits d: 10
by the towar, St .

e. Pilot did rot file an nﬁv&l fom. RPE AR,
fo Pilot took off downwind wit.haut ebeyang the 14
: givéntramtmt.mr e
g+ Pilot di4 net get an operat,ioxial clearan_ 2 i‘er t.ake of.f. A

A ft Has . rolling

@ 'ough to: clear

3. Int‘omti@a has baan received that the above reraft aﬂ",‘lf‘ fd
at thie Base from Gromt.to and departed fer Naples, airtiel n

be It is again stated tkat the stove infemt:len 13 passed on ﬁe

L4

/ ' - ‘ . o . /a/Jncu&Jahgsj,an
: JAMES E, JOHRSTON

‘ ‘ ‘ Lt.Col., Alr-Corpe,
Incls Gopies Tenter O;aeratars' Commriding, - .
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'DISCREPANCY REPORT |

DATES T=-15-45

: "g,._n 15 cbsr- 992IA
o mcnm §0. KW»B e

TYPE ATRCRAFT C-61
RARIO CORTACT (YES OR NO)- NO

INCTRUCTTONS GIVER PTLOT NV TOIER  NONE

ARIFF TESCRIPTION OF DISCREPANCY:  ATRCRAFT 100
LICKT CLEARANCE FROM TOWER. ALSO ATRGRAFT DIDRY T
CLEARANCE FITH OPERE TIONR, | =

4 CERTIFTED TRUE COPY:

Ae ume Appzawn /&/
4, LOUTS APPLETON,
CAPTATN, AIR CORPS



360,111x « : 20d Trd, e AGT/G’)A
350,112 L /etm
HEADQUARTERS,; ARMY AIR FORCES, HEBIWANEAN'THEA"

APD 650, U.8 ARMY, &

‘OF‘ QPERATIQN:),

To1 chnding General, -Apmy Air Fweea H
(Attn: Chief of Flying ngety)

1, Your attention is mzt,df,o theba

L 2 Kajor E.H, Eningten aad
aireraft in question, are at pre
‘awiting shipment to the Uaited Stat-
. Gmup. ‘

) 3. Both otﬂcm hava been g
4a the basic eij?,_\v,‘. ' "atien and t.

- C-8X nimnﬂ‘. m

. be !lajor R"I'Q JQ’M&
at Ciampinc. He approacha
and then landed south. He
cub on the runway whish ha -3u _At e
hscause the wind aoel; n '
He states that he did not ..m “the two. ‘l‘cd ;

pring h;s fimr.‘l sppressh,

- 5 !la;}or Johnna atatu that ha did ﬁle an mﬁval-
s Major B.H, Eliingten was pilet ' 1
H& ‘gbates that ha filed & é]
- by the wind ‘sock; He #aw o
wa-eﬂ.

, Bat.h afnurs exervis
GBI :uld fal}. tm hkﬂ that degree of Qm a :&M 1g e
immre the safeiy of ﬂsmg ,

L&
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5. This information is passed to you for u
further derelictions of these pilots are broug‘

FOR THE COVMANUING GENERAL'
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